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NORWICH

City in the County of Norfolk

Norwich was burnt by Swein in 1004.   In 1068 the Domesday Book recorded 1329 Burgesses and in 1250 it was granted city status.    In the 14th and 15th centuries,  Norwich had the largest population of any city in  England ( apart from London).

At present there are approximately 600 Freemen of Norwich; this figure having remained fairly constant for the last 100 years.   Freemen are admitted by patrimony or by apprenticeship; the period for the latter having been reduced from 7 to 4 years in 1966.   The apprenticeship or articles must be served under an individual Freeman of the City of Norwich.   The age of admission was reduced from 21 to 18 following the Family Reform Act of 1969.

Freemen are admitted by the Lord Mayor at a Court of Mayoralty, usually held annually after they have reached their majority and proving entitlement and by producing witnesses.   For at least the last 200 years this ceremony has been held in the 15th century Guildhall and the oath of allegiance is still in the same form as used in 1671.

The Norwich Freemen’s Committee (a representative committee of 25 Freemen) is elected at a Common Hall of Freemen summoned quinquennially by the Lord Mayor.   Proceedings are governed by a Scheme approved by the Charity Commissioners and which has been amended several times in the last 50 years in order to bring it into line with changing circumstances.   This Committee meets at least twice a year when the main business discussed is the consideration of applications for grants from the Norwich Town Close Estate Charity (see later) and recommendations are made for the Trustees subsequent decision.   The Committee also arranges for each year a visit to a place of local interest such as the Cathedral, the Castle and the Assembly House, to which all Freemen of Norwich are invited, the average attendance being about 100.    

A number of Honorary Freemen have been admitted in the past 100 years, but they do not qualify for any of the benefits of being a Freeman, nor can the freedom be passed on to their sons.   Since 1932 they have involved Sir Edward Wild , Recorder of London,  Aldermen A.J.Copeman,  A.E Witard,  Herbert Fraser, and Sir Arthur South , Russell Colman,  General Kepner, Commander 2nd Air Division U.S.A.A.F. ( the first  citizen of a foreign country to be made an Honorary Freeman) and in 1997 the Norwich Union Insurance Co Ltd was granted honorary freedom of the City.

Under the Local Government Act 1972, Norwich has appointed a Lord Mayor, a Deputy Lord Mayor and Sheriff.   

Old records of Freemen, apart from those held by the City council, are kept in the local Records office.

The Norwich Town Close Estate Charity

From 1524 until the 19th century the Freemen of Norwich held grazing rights over 80 acres of land to the south west side of the City, an area now bounded by the Newmarket, Ipswich and Eaton roads.   In the 19th century this became one of the best residential districts of Norwich.   After a number of legal disputes with the local civic authorities, this land was in 1892 given to the Freemen of Norwich in perpetuity on condition that a charity was established for the Freemen,   It was named the Norwich Town Close Estate Charity, and is now administered by eight Freemen Representative Trustees and by eight Trustees of Norwich Consolidated Charities, three of whom are nominated by Norwich City Council.

The estate consists of mainly residential properties but also includes a large preparatory school, a hotel, a garden centre and a tennis and squash club.    Originally most of the properties were leasehold, but the Leasehold Enfranchisement Act of 1967 has resulted in the fragmentation of the Estate and many of the properties have been sold.   This has however considerably increased the annual income of the Charity.   The scheme governing the Charity decrees that grants may be made for education and pension purposes for the benefit of Freemen, their widows and children.   Any surplus over and above these needs  may be allocated to local charities situated within 20 miles of the  Guildhall providing there is an educational or recreational element in the application.   As much as £300,000 has been distributed in one year to local charities on this basis.
References

“The Calendar of the Freemen of Norwich from 1317 to 1603”
compiled by John L’Estrange and edited by Walter Rye 1888

“The Register of Freemen of Norwich 1548 to 1713”
compiled by Percy Millican and published with the authority of Norwich Corporation

by Jarrold and Sons Limited in 1934

“The Freemen of Norwich 1714-1752”
compiled by Percy Millican : Norfolk Record Society. Vol.23: 1957

“The Town Close Estate - Evidences relating to the Town Close Estate Norwich” —1887 is  available in the local libaries:                                                                      

and for history of local government in Norwich, see 

“English Local Government, Vol.III part2”                                                                    Sidney and Beatrice Webb :  Longman Green & Co 1908: pp 529-558                       also available in libraries.

“Buxom to the Mayor”

Centre of East Anglia Studies, University of East Anglia - Elizabeth Griffiths and

Hassel Smith  : Witley Press 1987

available from the University of East Anglia and local bookshops.
